
MINUTES
SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE

DATE: Monday, March 03, 2025
TIME: 1:30 P.M.
PLACE: Room WW54
MEMBERS
PRESENT:

Chairman Lakey, Vice Chairman Shippy, Senators Ricks, Foreman, Lent,
Lenney, Keyser, Wintrow, and Ruchti

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

None

NOTE: The sign-in sheet, testimonies and other related materials will be retained with
the minutes in the committee's office until the end of the session and will then be
located on file with the minutes in the Legislative Services Library.

CONVENED: Chairman Lakey called the meeting of the Judiciary and Rules Committee
(Committee) to order at 1:40 p.m.

PASSED THE
GAVEL:

Chairman Lakey passed the gavel to Vice Chairman Shippy.

RS 32555 Relating to Jurisdictions on Military Installations. Chairman Lakey informed
the Committee that he had conversed with the Department of Defense (DOD)
State Liaison and that they had hoped to improve the collaboration between
the DOD and local prosecutors to enhance public safety. Chairman Lakey
stated that the purpose of RS 32555 was to initiate a conversation regarding
civilian cases on military installations. He believed that there needed to be more
communication between the Governor's office, the local prosecutors, and the
DOD to ensure everyone was aligned before this legislation was seriously
considered.

DISCUSSION: Senator Ricks asked Chairman Lakey to elaborate on the material of the
legislation. Chairman Lakey had explained that the legislation addressed the
prosecution and handling of civilian cases, both juvenile and adult, on military
installations. RS 32555 set a framework for handling these cases and allowed
the Governor to approve the transfer of jurisdiction of these civilian cases from
the military installation to the local county prosecuting attorney, if deemed
appropriate.

MOTION: Senator Foreman moved to send RS 32555 to print. Senator Ricks seconded
the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

RS 32568 Relating to a 5-Year Commemorative License Plate. Chairman Lakey
explained that the legislation pertained to a commemorative license plate,
which would be sold until July 1, 2030, to support the commissioning of the
U.S.S. Idaho, a new nuclear submarine. Senator Lakey mentioned that Senator
Okuniewicz had requested the legislation be printed and referred back to the
Transportation Committee.

MOTION: Senator Ricks moved to send RS 32568 to print. Senator Ruchti seconded the
motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

PASSED THE
GAVEL:

Vice Chairman Shippy passed the gavel back to Chairman Lakey.



GUBERNATORIAL
REAPPOINTMENT
VOTE:

Vote on the Gubernatorial Reappointment of Anna "Janie" Dressen to the
Commission of Pardons and Parole, to serve a term commencing January
1, 2025 and expiring January 1, 2028. Vice Chairman Shippy moved to send
the Gubernatorial Reappointment of Anna "Janie" Dressen to the Commission of
Pardons and Parole to the floor with a recommendation that she be confirmed
by the Senate. Senator Ruchti seconded the motion. The motion carried by
voice vote.

RECESS: Chairman Lakey called for the Committee to recess until the hour of 2:00 p.m.
to allow presenters time to arrive from the House of Representatives.

RESUME: Chairman Lakey called the Committee back to order at 2:05 p.m.
INTRODUCTION: Introduction of Presenting Judges - Senior Magistrate Judge Bryan

Murray. Judge Bryan Murray, Senior Magistrate Judge, introduced the
presenting judges. Judge Murray explained that the three magistrate judges
presenting represented the 101 magistrate judges serving in Idaho and were
going to discuss the challenges faced by magistrate judges across the State.

PRESENTATION: "On-Call" Duties of Magistrate Judges. Judge Regan Jameson, Fourth
Judicial District, shared that she was an Ada County magistrate judge. She
explained that, in addition to their regular workload, many magistrate judges
were required to be available for "On-Call" duties. These "On-Call" magistrate
judges were essential for handling cases involving search or arrest warrants,
as they needed to be contacted to determine probable cause. They could be
contacted at any time, day or night, to make these crucial decisions. Additionally,
they were called upon to consider the removal of a child from a dangerous
home, among other urgent matters.

DISCUSSION: Senator Wintrow asked Judge Jameson to explain how caseloads had changed
after the Clark Decision and how the size differences of counties affected
different counties' ability to deal with "On-Call" responsibilities. Judge Jameson
explained that after the Clark Decision, the "On-Call" caseload increased for
every county, which was particularly challenging for smaller counties, especially
those with only one magistrate judge. Senator Wintrow asked how magistrate
judges decided if an injury would result in a felony or misdemeanor charge.
Judge Jameson clarified that officers were cautious when making these
decisions and would consult with the prosecutor and judge if they had questions.
Senator Wintrow then asked if law enforcement was ever hesitant to make a
decision due to the potential loss of their firearm, to which Judge Jameson
replied in the negative.

Chairman Lakey asked Judge Jameson to explain if prosecutors still utilized
paper forms that had to be physically signed by the magistrate judge. Judge
Jameson explained that the process had been updated, the prosecutor would
send the warrant and complaint digitally and the judge would add their electronic
signature.

PRESENTATION: The Unique Challenges of Calendaring and Travel for Magistrate Judges in
the 7th District. Judge Neil Randall shared that he was the only magistrate
judge in Butte County while also working as a Bonneville County magistrate
judge, handling multiple specialty courts, and having two committee assignments
with the Supreme Court. To manage this workload, Judge Randall stated
that he made most of his decisions and trial preparations during evenings and
weekends, off the clock. He explained that this workload was typical for Seventh
District judges, noting that he spent 102 days of bench time commuting, which
could have been used for making decisions.

SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE
Monday, March 03, 2025—Minutes—Page 2



DISCUSSION: Chairman Lakey asked Judge Randall how he managed vacation time as
the only "On-Call" magistrate judge in his county. Judge Randall explained
that a senior judge in his district covered his docket when he needed time off.
Chairman Lakey also asked Judge Randall how he kept his professional duties
separate from his interactions within his small community. Judge Randall
admitted that this was a challenge and sometimes required calling in another
judge to maintain judicial fairness. He had also noted that addiction and mental
health cases were becoming more frequent in his county, significantly increasing
his caseload.

Senator Ricks had asked Judge Randall about the effectiveness of the software
program used by the magistrate courts. Judge Randall replied that software,
especially Zoom, was frequently used for administrative purposes to reduce
travel needs, but it often led to people underestimating the seriousness of the
proceedings and dressing or acting inappropriately for a court of law. Senator
Ricks then inquired about the functionality of the computer program used to track
magistrate judges' casework. Judge Randall acknowledged that the system,
Odyssey, had some glitches, but believed it was more effective than paper files
as it allowed case files to be accessed anywhere, improving timeliness.

PRESENTATION: The Impacts of Unmanaged Mental Health on Magistrate Division
Dockets. Judge Karin Seubert, Second Judicial District, explained that
unmanaged mental health issues were becoming increasingly common and
were exacerbating problems within family relationships, juvenile and adult
criminal cases, and child protection. These issues were also intensifying
conflicts between unrelated individuals and undermining personal responsibility,
necessitating court intervention. The court had utilized civil protection orders,
mental health courts, Driving Under the Influence (DUI) courts, the Idaho
Behavioral Health Council, the Competency Restoration Implementation Team,
and other tools to address these problems and enhance the information and
resources available to counties. Judge Seubert emphasized the positive impact
that treatment courts and other tools had on individuals' and communities'
mental health.

DISCUSSION: Senator Ricks commented that he was on the Behavioral Health Committee
that Judge Seubert had referred to, acknowledged the importance of mental
health, and thanked her for the work she and the courts had been doing.

Chairman Lakey asked Judge Seubert to explain the eligibility process for
the Mental Health Court program and whether there was limited room in these
courts. Judge Seubert replied that certain criteria had to be met for eligibility
and that there was always a waiting list. She had explained that generally, those
with felony charges were accepted first due to their greater need. She had also
mentioned that treatment courts were not the only tool used to address mental
health issues and that other methods could be equally successful.

Chairman Lakey then asked Judge Seubert if she would be interested in
becoming a district judge and to elaborate on why she and other judges might
or might not be interested in this position. Judge Seubert replied that she was
not personally interested in the position as her magistrate judgeship suited her
personality and experience and allowed her greater access to the public. She
had explained that the choice ultimately came down to personal preference.

ADJOURNED: There being no further business at this time, Chairman Lakey adjourned the
meeting at 2:50 p.m.

SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE
Monday, March 03, 2025—Minutes—Page 3



___________________________ ___________________________
Senator Lakey Sharon Pennington
Chair Secretary

___________________________
Linda Kambeitz
Assistant Secretary

SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE
Monday, March 03, 2025—Minutes—Page 4


